
 

 

CITY OF CORVALLIS 
MINUTES OF THE CIVIC BEAUTIFICATION AND URBAN FORESTRY 

COMMISSION 
JUNE 9, 2011 

 
Attendance 
Angelica Rehkugler- Chair 
Helen Ellis 
Ross Parkerson 
Dan Bregar 
Larry Passmore 
Joel Hirsch, Council Liaison 
 
Absent/Excused 
Kent Daniels, Vice Chair 
Tim Brewer 
Bill Johnson 
Joe Majeski, OSU Liaison 

 
Staff 
Dave Phillips, Park Operations Supervisor 
Becky Merja, Urban Forester 
Mark Lindgren, Recorder 
 
Visitors 
Vicki Wills 
Josh Hooley 

 
SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION 
 

 
Agenda Item 

 
Information 

Only 

 
Held for  

Further  

Review 

 
Recommendations 

 
II.  Review of Minutes 

       
      X 

  

III. Visitors’ Propositions 
 

 
      X 

  

IV. Staff Reports       X   

V. City Council/ OSU Liaison 
Reports 

 
      X 

  

V. Committee Reports 
 

 
      X 

  
 

VI. Commission Member Reports       X   
VII. Heritage Tree Program Update       X   
VIII. Beautification Awards       X   
IX. Adjournment  

       X 
 The next CBUF meeting will be at 8 a.m. July 14, 2011, at the 

Parks and Rec Conference Room. 

 
CONTENT OF DISCUSSION 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  Chair Rehkugler called the meeting to order at 8:03 a.m. She related that Bill 
Johnson had resigned from the Commission and has retired from his landscaping business.  
 

II. REVIEW OF MINUTES.  Rehkugler asked whether there should be continued discussion on the 
endowment, as proposed previously. Helen Ellis replied that Daniels had asked for further discussion but 
was not present; Rehkugler postponed discussion until Daniels returns. Ross Parkerson moved and Dan 
Bregar seconded to approve May 12, 2011 minutes as presented; motion passed.  
 

hart
Draft



Minutes of Civic Beautification and Urban Forestry Commission, June 9, 2011 Page 2 

 

III. t 
t CBUF has had a good relationship with Pacific Power 

ince its very beginning. Hooley said he expected pruning of hot spots over the next few weeks with 

e 
ended. Wills related that she was asked whether she could speak on 

BUF’s work during the Arts Center’s World Tree Week event in July; Ellis suggested Wills represent 
mber.  

IV. 

 serving as interim City Manager following the 
tirement of City Manager Jon Nelson on July 1. Public Works Steve Rogers is also retiring, with a 

ral 

ideration, Director Emery decided not to pursue construction of a second 
nced dog park. Four potential locations were considered, but in applying the siting criteria, none of 

 
 Gwen Kubeck. He said that Jerry Smith of Public Works 

sked for input on how to improve the 2  and B area; it should look much better by the time the 

n 

erials 

idly. 
epresentatives of OSU, the city and county identified area elm locations in the 1980’s; she said she 

ber of 

f the street. She will discuss the situation with street residents soon; it may make sense to bring in a 
.  

 dead 
lnut at 34  and Tyler; she will try to market the lumber to woodworkers. Ellis noted that trees 

ave a life span. Passmore added that people appear to be more aware of trees that should not be 

 

VISITORS’ PROPOSITIONS.  Josh Hooley introduced himself as the new Vegetation Managemen
Supervisor for Pacific Power. Merja related tha
s
scheduled maintenance starting in November.  
 
Vicki Wills related that the Arts Center Youth Education Coordinator, Chris Neil, was appreciative of th
recognition that CBUF had ext
C
herself as an ad hoc me
 
STAFF REPORTS.   
David Phillips distributed tote bags to commissioners as a token of the mayor’s appreciation for their 
service. He related that Ellen Volmert will begin
re
Division Manager filling in during the interim.  
 
The sewer interceptor project will require closing the fenced dog park at 2nd and B Streets for seve
months starting in July. Public Works will resurface and fund improvements to the park afterwards. 
Following PNARB cons
fe
them seemed suitable.  
 
He related that Natural Resource staffer Iris Benson had moved to Public Works to work with the
Stormwater Program, replacing departing

nda
Farmers Market returns there next year.  
 
Forester Becky Merja highlighted upcoming tree removals, including at 5th and B Streets, of Elm trees 
infected by Dutch Elm Disease (DED), which have been slowly dying. She said the city has bee
aggressively removing diseased American Elms for some years, since OSU has some of the oldest on 
the West Coast. Josh Hooley added that Pacific Power will do some preparatory work to create 
clearance around power lines there. Merja said DED trees are chipped as much as possible; mat
must be taken to the landfill, where it is considered hazardous waste. She said DED has been in 
Corvallis since 1997, and the city has slowed the spread of the diseases by responding rap
R
monitors the trees and looks for dieback on tree tips and when she finds it, gets it tested.  
 
Merja said a section of Tyler between 7th and 8th Streets will also see some tree removals. A num
trees have wounds from topping and past failures, including a co-dominant Douglas-fir and a Black 
Locust with heart rot. She highlighted a history of black locust tree failures there and said it was 
fortunate there have been no injuries from limb falls. She noted the removals will change the character 
o
crane, close the street and do the work all at once over a few weeks. Parkerson said it will be a shock
 
Merja related that English Walnuts dropping limbs at the 200 block of 9th Street and another at Van 
Buren and 9th Street are posted for removal and will be part of the same project. She highlighted a
Black Wa th

h
planted.  



Minutes of Civic Beautification and Urban Forestry Commission, June 9, 2011 Page 3 

 

V. 
e Budget Commission approved a 

dget that keeps the Aquatic Center and the Senior Center open. 

VI. COMMITTEE REPORTS.  None. 

VII. 
llis highlighted the naming dedication ceremony of the Helen M. Berg Plaza in Riverfront Park. 

ted the Majestic Theater board was open to working collaboratively on the Majestic 
ree program.  

arry Passmore highlighted visiting gardens and arboretums recently in Italy and Germany.  

en attending those meetings. The next meeting is Tuesday, 
une 14 at OSU Extension on 9th Street.  

VIII. 
t of the 

. This 

m 
aid public schools would be involved in creation of the 

rogram, with rollout scheduled for 2013.  

ially since 
 is not regulatory. Hirsch related he’d announced the program at a recent Council meeting 

ssmore volunteered to 
ork on outreach. Merja said she sought to start scheduling meetings in July.  

IX. 
ouncilors to see if they are interested in coming 

long for presentation of Beautification Awards.  

X. ADJOURNMENT: The meeting adjourned at 9:33 A.M. 

CITY COUNCIL/OSU LIAISON REPORTS. 
Council Liaison Hirsch related that with the passage of the levy, th
bu
  

 
COMMISSION MEMBER REPORTS.   
E
 
Vicki Wills rela
T
 
L
 
Rehkugler related she has been keeping track of the progress of a Sustainable Landscaping group; 
Phillips said a Maintenance staffer has be
J
 
HERITAGE TREE PROGRAM UPDATE.  
Forester Merja highlighted information in the packet and related the history of the developmen
program proposal for Corvallis. She noted that each community implements the program a bit 
differently. She related that she and Planner Rochefort met with Bob Richardson, staff liaison with the 
Historic Preservation Commission; his main concern was whether the program would be regulated
led to going with a non-regulated program. Director Emery was scheduled to take the idea to the 
Director’s meeting yesterday for feedback. Merja related that she discussed the proposal with Dave 
Livingston and B.A. Beierle of PreservationWorks. She said the proposal will be listed as an FYI ite
in the G-T to give public notification. She s
p
 
She envisioned using a process to create the program similar to that used with the Urban Forest 
Management Plan, with a group of stakeholders and public Visitor Propositions at the beginning and 
end of meetings. Dan Bregar said he’d like to help with getting students involved. Wills anticipated an 
overwhelmingly positive public response, similar to the Civic Beautification Program, espec
it
 
Parkerson, Bregar, Rehkugler and Wills volunteered to work on the project; Pa
w
 
BEAUTIFICATION AWARDS.   
Rehkugler reminded commissioners to ask Ward C
a
 


